CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING DATE 06/12/2023

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive.

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.

Councilmembers Present: Cramer, Spillane, Gilbert, Krueger, Knickerbocker,

Henry.

Councilmembers Absent: Hicks.

Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, Clerk Connie Olger,

Treasurer Deanna Korth.

Others Present: Jim Barclay, Rob Merinsky, Josh Pfeiffer.

Others Virtually Attended: Lania Rocha.

EXCUSE MAYOR PRO TEM HICKS

Resolution No. 230612-01

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Henry Second by Councilmember Cramer

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council excuse Mayor Pro Tem Hicks and Councilmember Cramer.

YES: Unanimous Voice Vote.

NO: None. Motion declared carried.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Resolution No. 230612-02

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Spillane Second by Councilmember Gilbert

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held Monday May 22, 2023, to be circulated and placed on file.

YES: Gilbert, Krueger, Knickerbocker, Henry, Cramer, Spillane.

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Resolution No. 230612-03

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Henry Second by Councilmember Gilbert

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as distributed for the Regular Council Meeting of June 12, 2023, to be circulated and placed on file.

YES: Krueger, Knickerbocker, Henry, Cramer, Spillane, Gilbert...

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT

Resolution No. 230612-04

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Cramer Second by Councilmember Gilbert

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager's Report of June 12, 2023, including reports and communications to be circulated and placed on file.

Discussion Ensued.

YES: Krueger, Knickerbocker, Henry, Cramer, Spillane, Gilbert.

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

Josh Pfeiffer 5464 Seymour Road hasn't seen a change in the speeding or police presence.

Lania Rocha reminded everyone that Maker's Market is tomorrow at Holland Square.

COUNCIL BUSINESS:

RESOLUTION TO PURCHASE ROAD SALT

Resolution No. 230612-05

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Gilbert Second by Councilmember Cramer

WHEREAS, the city finds it necessary to control ice and snow accumulation on public streets and parking areas with the application of road salt during winter months; and

WHEREAS, this process requires approximately 1,100 tons of rock salt during a winter season; and

WHEREAS, the City's Purchasing Ordinance, Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-406 provides for and encourages cooperative government purchasing practices; and

WHEREAS, the Genesee County Road Commission has previously bid and/or negotiated the purchase of rock salt for application to public right-of-ways during those relentless and invasive Michigan winters; and

WHEREAS, the GCRC negotiated a salt price for the coming winter, with year over year decrease, with Detroit Salt Company of 12841 Sanders St., Detroit, at a unit cost of \$65.37 per ton, and a cooperative purchasing invitation has been extended to the City from the Genesee County Road Commission on May 23, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the City finds the per-ton cost of \$65.37 to be extremely competitive.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council accepts the Genesee County Road Commission's cooperative purchasing agreement and appropriate an amount not to exceed \$71,907, plus 10% contingency, for the purchase of rock salt from the Detroit Salt Company, expenses to be distributed proportionate to use at the direction of the City's Treasurer.

Discussion Ensued.

YES: Knickerbocker, Henry, Cramer, Spillane, Gilbert, Krueger.

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 CITY BUDGET

Resolution No. 230612-06

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Knickerbocker Second by Councilmember Henry

WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council is required to approve a budget in accordance with the General Appropriations Act and Uniform Budgeting and Accounting Act; and

WHEREAS, a public hearing was posted and held in accordance with the city charter on May 22, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council finds the following Fund-based budget to be an accurate and desirable instrument to appropriate funds to serve the needs of the City of Swart Creek; and

WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council desires the budget to be accompanied by additional illustrative, narrative, and data materials to make the budget more transparent and useful to staff, officials, and the public.

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council hereby adopt the following 2023-2024 fiscal budget based upon the following tax mils:

General Operating Levy	4.6938	mills
Public Safety SAD	4.9000	mills
Street Levy	4.1019	mills
Sanitation Levy	2.6270	mills

101 GENERAL FUND Estimated Beginning Fund E	Balance	\$	1,756,836
Estimated Revenues	Adopted		
General Fund Estimated Operating Revenues	2,943,039	_	
	2,943,039	_	
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted		
General Government Activities 000-299	682,953		
Public Safety Activities 301-399	1,623,753		
Public Works Activities 400-799	527,360		
Other Government Activities 800-999	313,460	_	
	3,147,526	_	
	3,147,526	_	
Effect on General Fund's Fund Balance			(204,487)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024			\$ 1,552,349

202 MAJOR STREETS Estimated Beginning Fund Balance		\$ 215,817
Estimated Revenues	Adopted	
Major Streets Fund Estimated Operating Revenues	1,733,424	
	1,733,424	
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted	
General Government Activities 101-299	900	
Public Safety Activities 301-399	0	

	_,: -,: -		
Other Government Activities 800-999	0		
	1,781,700		
	1,781,700		
Effect on Major Street's Fund Balance			140 276
•		<u> </u>	(48,276)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024		\$	167,542
203 LOCAL STREETS FUND Estimated Beginning Fo	und Balance	\$	387,957
Estimated Revenues	Adopted		
Local Streets Fund Estimated Operating Revenue	3,800,600		
	3,800,600		
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted		
General Government Activities 101-299	0		
Public Safety Activities 301-399	0		
Public Works Activities 400-799	3,752,395		
Other Government Activities 800-999	0		
	3,752,395		
	3,752,395		
Effect on Level Character Foundle Found Belower			40.205
Effect on Local Streets Fund's Fund Balance			48,205
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024		\$	436,162
204 MUNICIPAL STREET FUND Estimated Beginni	ng Fund Balance	\$	490,504
Estimated Revenues	Adopted		
Municipal Stree Fund Estimated Revenue	7,150,145		
	7,150,145		
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted		
General Government Activities 101-299	0		
Public Safety Activities 301-399	•		
Public Works Activities 400-799	0		
Table Works Additioned Too 755	0		
	-		
Other Government Activities 800-999	0		
	0 3,767,954		3,382,191
Other Government Activities 800-999	0 3,767,954	<u> </u>	3,382,1 3,872,6

1,780,800

Public Works Activities 400-799

226 GARBAGE FUND Estimated Beginning Fund	Balance	\$ 365,703
Estimated Revenues	Adopted	
Garbage Fund Estimated Operating Revenue	471,920	
	471,920	
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted	
General Government Activities 000-299	37,677	
Public Safety Activities 301-399	0	
Public Works Activities 400-799	419,016	
Other Government Activities 800-999	0	
	456,693	
Effect on Garbage Fund's Fund Balance		15,227
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024		\$ 380,929
248 DDA FUND Estimated Beginning Fund Ba	alance	\$ 123,466
Estimated Revenues	Adopted	
DDA Fund Estimated Operating Revenue	167,755	
	167,755	
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted	
General Government Activities 101-299	25,303	
Public Safety Activities 301-399	0	
Public Works Activities 400-799	95,169	
Other Government Activities 800-999	0	
	120,472	
	120,472	
Effect on Local Streets Fund's Fund Balance		47,283
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024		\$ 170,748
401 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND Estimated Begin	ning Fund Balance	\$ -
Estimated Revenues	Adopted	
Capital Project Fund Est Operating Rev.	60,000	
	60,000	
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted	
General Government Activities 101-299	0	
Public Safety Activities 301-399	0	
Public Works Activities 400-799	0	
Other Government Activities 800-999	0	
	0	

Effect on Capital Project Fund Balance			60,000
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024		\$	60,000
402 FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND Estimated Beginning Fu	ınd Balance	\$	117,025
Estimated Revenues	Adopted		
Fire Equipment Replacement Fund Est Operating Rev.	228,000	_	
	228,000	_	
Appropriations	Adopted		
General Government Activities 101-299	0		
Public Safety Activities 301-399	341,618		
Public Works Activities 400-799	0		
Other Government Activities 800-999	0	_	
	341,618		
	341,618		
Effect on Fire Equip Replacement Fund's Fund Balance	2		(113,618)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024		\$	3,408

590 SEWER FUND Estimated Beginning Fund Balance		\$ 6,819,877
Estimated Revenues	Adopted	
Sanitary Sewer Fund Estimated Operating Revenue	1,393,078	
	1,393,078	
Appropriations	Adopted	
General Government Activities 000-299	145,904	
Public Safety Activities 301-399		
Public Works Activities 400-799	1,240,317	
Other Government Activities 800-999	10,500	
	1,396,721	
	1,396,721	

Effect on Sanitary Sewer Fund's Fund Balance

(3,644)

Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024

6,816,233

SEWER FUND EXPENSES INCLUDE \$320,000 IN DEPRECIATION

591 WATER FUND Estimated Beginning Fund Bala	591 WATER FUND Estimated Beginning Fund Balance		7,349,888
Estimated Revenues	Adopted		
Water Supply Fund Estimated Operating Revenue	2,309,750		
	2,309,750		
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted		
General Government Activities 000-299	168,195		
Public Safety Activities 301-399	0		
Public Works Activities 400-799	6,778,199		
Other Government Activities 800-999	79,870		
	7,026,264		
	7,026,264	_	
Effect on Water Supply Fund's Fund Balance			(4,716,514)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024		\$	2,633,374
WATER FUND EXPENSES INCLUDE \$400,000 IN DEPRECIATION			

661 MOTOR POOL FUND Estimated Beginning Fund Balance		\$ 511,118
Estimated Revenues	Adopted	
Motor Pool Fund Estimated Operating Revenue	218,795	
	218,795	
<u>Appropriations</u>	Adopted	
General Government Activities 101-299	403,357	
Public Safety Activities 301-399	0	
Public Works Activities 400-799	0	
Other Government Activities 800-999	3,000	
	406,357	
	406,357	
Effect on Motor Pool Fund's Fund Balance		(187,562)
Estimated Ending Fund Balance June 30, 2024		\$ 323,557

MOTOR POOL EXPENSES INCLUDE \$75,000 IN DEPRECIATION

\$

Total All Funds Estimated Revenues 20,476,505

\$

Total All Funds Appropriations 22,197,699

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Swartz Creek City Council hereby approve the 2023-2024 Budget Book as included in the June 12, 2023 city council packet.

Discussion Ensued.

YES: Henry, Cramer, Spillane, Gilbert, Krueger, Knickerbocker

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE MILLER ROAD PAVEMENT REHABILITATION

Resolution No. 230612-07

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Spillane Second by Councilmember Henry

WHEREAS, the City maintains a system of major and local streets; and

WHEREAS, the City submitted Miller Road to the Traffic Improvement Program for federal funding and subsequently received federal funds commiserate with approximately 80% of the anticipated construction value of \$1,619,852; and

WHEREAS, the City opted to receive 90% of these funds to complete the project independent of MDOT oversight, an amount equal to \$1,124,549; and

WHEREAS, the project was designed by OHM and released for state-wide bids, with the sole bid being Ace-Saginaw Paving Company in the amount of \$1,368,913.42; and

WHEREAS, the City finds Ace to be a competent company in good standing; and

WHEREAS, the City finds that full construction engineering services are not essential for this project, but that some engineering oversight and consultation is required to ensure quantities, joint inspection, prevailing wage affirmation, and miscellaneous related tasks; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council hereby approves the bid from Ace-Saginaw Paving Company, as a unit based bid in the projected amount of \$1,368,913.42 to repair and rehabilitate Miller Road from Morrish to Seymour, in accordance with the bid documents included in the June 12, 2023 city council packet.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council hereby approves and authorizes the City Manager to engage OHM Advisors for project oversight, administration, and miscellaneous consultation on an as-needed basis per their existing hourly fee schedule.

Discussion Ensued.

YES: Cramer, Spillane, Gilbert, Krueger, Knickerbocker, Henry.

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

RESOLUTION TO RECOMMEND AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE APPENDIX A TO REMOVE AND REPLACE ARTCLE 7, PUD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

Resolution No. 230612-08

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Henry Second by Councilmember Cramer

WHEREAS, the Public Act 110 of 2006, the Michigan Zoning Enabling Act, enables cities to regulate land use through the creation and enforcement of zoning maps and regulations, and

WHEREAS, the city updated its master plan and DDA plan in 2022, which stressed the need to create a Planned Unit Development overlay for the downtown, further requiring changes to the zoning ordinance, and;

WHEREAS, the planning commission, with the assistance of staff, and input by the public, reviewed specific changes to the zoning ordinance at their regular meeting on June 6, 2023, and;

WHEREAS, the planning commission, at a public hearing at their meeting on June 6, 2023 and in reviewing the criteria in Zoning Ordinance Section 24.05, found the proposed zoning ordinance amendments to be in the best interest of the public.

THEREFORE, **I MOVE** the City of Swartz Creek ordains:

CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDINANCE NO. 462

An ordinance to amend the Code of Ordinances: Zoning Appendix A to remove and replace Article 7 PUD, Planned Unit Development District

THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS:

Section 1. Removal and replacement of Article 7 from Appendix A of the Code of Ordinances.

The City hereby removes Article 7 from the Code of Ordinances of Appendix and replaces it with the following:

Article 7. PUD, Planned Unit Development District

Section 7.00. Intent.

Planned Unit Development District (PUD) standards are provided to:

- a) Permit flexibility in the regulation of land development allowing for higher quality of design through innovation in land use, variety in design, layout, and type of structures constructed.
- b) Ensure various land uses and building bulk will relate to each other and to adjoining existing and planned uses in such a way that they will be compatible, with no material adverse impact of one use on another.
- c) Protect and preserve natural resources, natural features, open space, and historical or significant architectural features.
- d) Minimize adverse traffic impacts.
- e) Provide convenient vehicular access throughout the development and minimizing adverse traffic impacts.
- f) Provide complete non-motorized circulation to, from, and within developments.
- g) Encourage development of convenient recreational facilities as an integral part of residential developments.
- h) Eliminate or reduce the degree of non-conforming uses or structures.
- i) Promote efficient provision of public services and utilities.
- i) Promote adequate housing and employment.

The PUD standards are not intended to avoid the imposition of standards and requirements of other zoning classifications rather than to achieve the stated purposes herein set forth.

For properties approved for PUD designation, the PUD standards consist of those requirements provided within this Article and by waivers granted by the Planning Commission authorizing a departure from one (1) or more of the requirements or standards of the underlying zoning district.

This article provides for four types of PUD: 1) a residential overlay, 2) a Morrish Road Overlay, 3) a downtown overlay and 4) an industrial overlay. Each of the PUDs include both supplementary standards which apply simultaneously or replace standards of the underlying residential zoning district. (Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.01. Eligibility criteria.

To be eligible for PUD approval, the applicant must demonstrate that each of the following criteria will be met:

- (a) Demonstrated benefit. The PUD shall provide one or more of the following benefits not possible under the requirements of another zoning district, as determined by the planning commission:
 - (1) The site has significant natural or historic features which will be preserved through development under the PUD standards, as determined by the planning commission.
 - (2) A complementary mixture of uses or a variety of housing types.
 - (3) The PUD will create a more desirable environment than would be possible through the application of strict zoning requirements applied in other sections of this ordinance.
 - (4) Common open space for passive or active recreational use or a design which preserves common open space, not possible under the standards of another zoning district.
 - (5) Mitigation to offset community impacts.
 - (6) Redevelopment of a non-conforming site where creative design can address unique site constraints.
- (b) Availability and capacity of public services. The site shall be served by a sanitary sewer system and the municipal water system. The proposed type and density of use shall not result in an unreasonable increase in the use of public services, public facilities, and utility capacities.
- (c) Compatibility with the master plan. The proposed development shall not have an adverse impact on future development as proposed in the Swartz Creek Master Plan.
- (d) Compatibility with the planned unit development intent. The proposed development shall be consistent with the intent and spirit of this ordinance.
- (e) Development impact. The proposed development shall not impede the continued use or development of surrounding properties for uses that are permitted in this ordinance.
- (f) Unified control of property. The Planned Unit Development District site shall be under the control of one owner or group of owners and shall be capable of being planned and developed as one integral unit.
- (g) Petition for PUD. A PUD zoning classification may be initiated only by a petition.
- (h) Minimum land area. No minimum size is required.

Section 7.02. Types of PUD zoning designations.

A property meeting the eligibility criteria may be rezoned to a PUD District, based on the requirements shown in Table 7.03 and appropriate requirements contained elsewhere in this ordinance. The PUD rezoning shall be concurrent with the approval of a Preliminary PUD site plan. Any changes to the underlying/pre-PUD zoning designation may be done concurrently with the PUD rezoning where such rezoning would be in accordance with the city's master plan. The PUD designation shall be noted in the application and on the official zoning map upon approval.

Section 7.03. City of Swartz Creek—Planned Unit Development Districts.

District Name	Type of District	Permitted Uses	Special Land Uses	Additional Provisions
Residential Planned Unit Development (RPUD)	Overlay of a residential district	Open space or cluster housing projects with one or more types of residential uses Existing dwellings	Same as underlying residential district	Maximum density, minimum floor area and maximum height shall comply with the dimensional standards of the underlying zoning district, but the lot area, setback and width requirements may be reduced by up to 20 percent with the resultant area preserved as open space. Wetland setbacks may not be reduced. Wetlands and land without perkable soils shall be credited as 25 percent of their area for purposes of calculating overall density. The overall density may be increased by up to ten percent for sites of at least 100 acres where the planning commission determines significant natural resources and open space will be preserved in a natural state and the increased density would be compatible with surrounding zoning.
Morrish Road Planned Unit Development (MRPUD)	Overlay of a GBD District	Same as underlying district Existing dwellings	Same as underlying residential district	Maximum density, minimum floor area and maximum height shall comply with the dimensional standards of the underlying zoning district, but the lot area, setback and width requirements may be reduced by up to 20 percent upon a determination that the building contributes to an attractive entranceway into Swartz Creek, preferably with an emphasis on the well-being of downtown.
Downtown Planned Unit Development (DPUD)	Overlay of the CBD, Central Business District	Same as underlying district Existing dwellings	Same as underlying district	Projects shall comply with the density and dimensional standards of the underlying zoning district, but can be changed through the granting of a waiver from the Planning Commission, upon a determination that the building contributes to the well-being of the downtown area and meets the Intent of Section 7.00.
Planned Industrial Parks (PID)	Overlay of Industrial District	Uses permitted in the Industrial	Special Land Uses of the Industrial	All buildings, structures, accessory structures and parking areas shall meet the minimum setback standards of the Industrial District along the site lot lines, as specified in the Table of

and Office Districts	and Office Districts	Dimensional Standards. Minimum lot size shall be two acres except up to 25 percent of the total number of lots may be between one and one-half and two acres in size. Maximum building height shall be consistent with
		the standards for the Industrial
		District.

Section 7.04. Application and review procedure.

The application process for a PUD involves the following steps:

- A. An optional pre-application review by the Planning Commission to provide guidance to the applicant.
- B. Request for rezoning to appropriate PUD designation and a Preliminary PUD site plan.
- C. A final PUD site plan(s).
- D. A contractual agreement between the applicant and the city.
- E. A final PUD site plan review for each building or project phase, where appropriate.

(Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.05. Zoning and Preliminary PUD site plan approval process.

- (a) Pre-application workshop. An optional pre-application workshop with the planning commission may be requested by the applicant to discuss the appropriateness of a PUD concept, solicit feedback and receive requests for additional materials supporting the proposal. An applicant desiring a workshop shall request placement on the planning commission agenda.
- (b) Application. A petition for a PUD District classification for a parcel of land may be made by the owner(s) of record or by any person(s) acting on behalf of the owner(s) of record of the subject parcel. The petition, including 12 copies of all Preliminary PUD site plan submittal items listed in section 7.06, shall be filed with the city clerk who shall transmit the petition and the PUD concept plan to the planning commission. The complete application shall be submitted at least 45 days prior to the meeting at which the planning commission shall first review the request.
- (c) Planning commission public hearing. The planning commission shall review the rezoning request, the Preliminary PUD site plan, and draft PUD agreement, conduct a public hearing, said hearing to be held within 32 days of the receipt by the planning commission of the information required for the PUD. The planning commission shall give notice of the public hearing as required by The Michigan Zoning Enabling Act (Public Act 110 of 2006).
- (d) Following the public hearing, the planning commission shall make a recommendation to the city council based on the following standards:
 - (1) The PUD shall satisfy the eligibility criteria of section 7.01.
 - (2) The PUD shall comply with the requirements of this article, other applicable sections of this ordinance and the subdivision or condominium requirements of the city, as applicable.

- (3) The PUD shall be designed and constructed in a manner harmonious with the character of adjacent property and the surrounding area.
- (4) The PUD shall be adequately served by essential public facilities and services, such as roads, pedestrian or bicycle facilities, police and fire protection, drainage systems, water supply, and sewage facilities. The design shall minimize the negative impact on the road system in consideration of items such as vehicle trip generation, access location and design, circulation, roadway capacity, traffic operations at proposed access points and nearby intersections.
- (5) The proposed PUD shall not have a significant adverse effect on the quality of the natural environment in comparison to the impacts associated with a conventional development.
- (e) Revisions. The applicant shall make any revisions to incorporate conditions noted by the planning commission and submit 12 copies to the city to provide sufficient time for review prior to the city council meeting.
- (f) City council approval of Preliminary PUD site plan. Within 90 days following receipt of a recommendation from the planning commission, the city council shall conduct a public hearing on the requested PUD rezoning and the Preliminary PUD site plan and either approve, deny or approve with a list of conditions made part of the approval. The city council may require a re-submittal of the Preliminary PUD site plan reflecting the conditions for approval by the zoning administrator prior to submittal of a final PUD site plan.
- (g) Time limits for Preliminary plan approval. Approval of the Preliminary PUD site plan by the city council shall confer upon the owner the right to proceed through the subsequent planning phase for a period not to exceed two years from date of approval. If application for final PUD site plan approval is not requested within this time period, the planning commission shall hold a public hearing to revert the site to the pre-PUD zoning. The city council may extend the period up to an additional two years upon a showing of substantial progress in development of previously approved phases, or upon a showing of good cause for not having made such progress.
- (h) Conditions. Reasonable conditions may be required with the approval of a PUD for the purpose of ensuring that public services and facilities affected by a proposed land use or activity will be capable of accommodating increased service and facility loads caused by the land use or activity, protecting the natural environment and conserving natural resources, ensuring compatibility with adjacent uses of land, promoting the use of land in a socially and economically desirable manner, and further the implementation of the Swartz Creek Master Plan. Conditions attached shall be included in the PUD agreement.
- (i) Final approvals. Following approval of the Preliminary PUD plan, the application shall follow the procedures and requirements for approvals under the subdivision, condominium or site plan review process, as applicable. All site plans or tentative Preliminary plats subsequently submitted shall conform with the Preliminary PUD plan, all conditions attached to Preliminary approval, the PUD agreement and the requirements of this ordinance. Where the planning commission

- determines that changes to the final site plan or final Preliminary plat significantly deviate from the Preliminary PUD plan, the planning commission shall conduct another public hearing and review the plan as an amended resubmission of the Preliminary PUD plan under the requirements of this article.
- (k) The City Council may, by resolution and upon recommendation of the Planning Commission, approve an overall Preliminary PUD site plan establishing specific design guidelines and development standards for a site or multiple sites, which may include waivers for certain requirements and standards of the underlying zoning district or special use(s). For the purposes of this Article, an approved Preliminary PUD site plan requires each developer to follow the process for final PUD site plan approval outlined in this Article. The Planning Commission may require each developer to enter into a separate PUD Agreement for each individual site or series of projects as a condition of approval to the final PUD site plan approval. Deviations from an approved Preliminary PUD site plan or final PUD site plan shall be permitted only in accordance with Section 7.14. Amendments and deviations from approved final PUD site plan.

Section 7.06. Preliminary PUD site plan submittal requirements.

The purpose of the Preliminary review is to provide a mechanism whereby the applicant can obtain a substantial review of the proposed project in order to prepare final site engineering and architecture plans, and to execute necessary agreements between the applicant and the city. Submittal requirements are listed below.

- A. Current proof of ownership of the land to be utilized or evidence of a contractual ability to acquire such land, such as an option or purchase agreement.
- B. A completed application form, supplied by the city clerk and an application fee. A separate escrow deposit may be required for administrative charges to review the PUD submittal.
- C. Sheet size of submitted drawings shall be at least 24 inches by 36 inches, with graphics at an engineer's scale, or in another format acceptable to the city.
- D. Cover sheet providing:
 - 1. The applicant's name, mailing address, telephone/fax number(s) and email address;
 - 2. The name of the development;
 - 3. The preparer's name and professional seal of architect, engineer, surveyor or landscape architect indicating license in the State of Michigan;
 - 4. Date of preparation and any revisions;
 - 5. North arrow;
 - 6. Property lines and dimensions;
 - 7. Complete and current legal description and size of property in acres:
 - 8. Small location sketch of the subject site and area within one-half mile; and to scale;

- 9. Zoning and current land use of applicant's property and all abutting properties and of properties across any public or private street from the PUD site:
- 10. Lot lines and all structures on the property and within 100 feet of the PUD property lines;
- 11. Location of any access points on both sides of the street within 100 feet of the PUD site along streets where access to the PUD is proposed.
- E. An overall area map at a scale of not less than one-inch equals 2,000 feet showing the relationship of the development to its surroundings such as major roads or collector roads.
 - 1. Physical development plan prepared at a minimum scale of one-inch equals 100 [feet].
 - 2. Boundaries of proposed PUD and overall property dimensions.
 - 3. Property lines of adjacent tracts of subdivided and unsubsidized land shown in relation to the PUD site, including those of areas across abutting roads.
 - 4. Location, widths, and names of existing or prior platted roads and private roads, and public easements within or adjacent to the PUD site, including those located across abutting roads.
 - 5. Location of existing sewers, water mains, storm drains and other underground facilities within or adjacent to the PUD site.
 - 6. Topography drawn as contours with a one-foot contour interval. Topography to be based on USGS datum and be extended a minimum distance of 200 feet outside the PUD boundaries.
 - 7. Location of existing buildings and structures.
 - 8. Location of significant natural and historical features.
 - 9. Existing limits of major stands of trees and a tree survey indicating the location, species and caliper of all trees with a caliper over eight inches, measured four feet above grade.
- F. A Preliminary PUD site plan sheet including:
 - 1. Preliminary layout of proposed land use, acreage allotted to each use, residential density overall and by underlying zoning district (calculations shall be provided for both overall and useable acreage), building footprints, structures, roadways, parking areas, drives, driveways, and pedestrian paths.

Note: Useable area is total area less public road rights-of-way, year-round surface water bodies, and MDEQ regulated wetlands.

- 2. Building setbacks and spacing.
- 3. General location and type of landscaping proposed (evergreen, deciduous, berm, etc.) noting existing trees over eight inches in caliper to be retained, and any woodlands that will be designated as "areas not to be disturbed in development of the PUD.
- 4. A storm water management system, water supply and wastewater disposal systems, any public or private easements, and a note of any utility lines to be removed.
- 5. A list of any requested (and known) deviations from the dimensional standards of the zoning ordinance or sign ordinance that otherwise would apply (permitted deviations include: minimum lot width, area or setbacks; private road standards).

6. If a multi-phase Planned Unit Development District is proposed, the area of each phase must be identified. For residential uses identify the number, type, and density proposed by phase.

(Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.07. Standards for approval of a Planned Unit Development District and Preliminary PUD site plan.

Based upon the following standards, the planning commission may recommend denial, approval, or approval with conditions, and the city council may deny, approve, or approve with conditions the proposed Planned Unit Development District.

- A. The Planned Unit Development District meets the qualification requirements.
- B. The uses proposed will have a beneficial effect, in terms of public health, safety, welfare, or convenience, on present and future potential surrounding land uses. The uses proposed will not adversely affect the public utility and circulation system, surrounding properties, or the environment. The public benefit shall be one which could not be achieved under the regulations of the underlying district alone, or that of any other zoning district.
- C. The Planned Unit Development District is generally consistent with the goals, objectives and land use map of the future land use plan.
- D. Judicious effort has been used to preserve significant natural and historical features, surface and underground water bodies and the integrity of the land.
- E. Public water and sewer facilities are available or shall be provided for by the developer as part of the site development.
- F. Safe, convenient, uncongested, and well defined vehicular and pedestrian circulation within and to the site is provided. Drives, streets and other elements shall be designed to discourage through traffic, while promoting safe and efficient traffic operations within the site and at its access points.
- G. Any waivers from the requirements or standards of the underlying zoning district or special use(s) in accordance with Section 13.13, such as but not limited to density, lot sizes, setbacks, height limits, required facilities, buffers, open space, or permitted sign area, will be reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission when it is determined that the waivers will accomplish the objectives identified in this Article and be consistent with the intent and purpose of the underlying zoning district.
- The city council may impose additional reasonable conditions, 1) to ensure that public services and facilities affected by a Planned Unit Development District will be capable of accommodating increased service and facility loads caused by the Planned Unit Development District, 2) to protect the natural environment and conserve natural resources and energy, 3) to ensure compatibility with adjacent uses of land, and 4) to promote the use of land in a socially and economically desirable manner.
- H. In a Planned Industrial Park (PID) a setback of 50 feet wide shall be provided along the perimeter of the PID fronting on a public street.

- I. In a Planned Industrial Park (PID) a setback of 20 feet wide shall be provided along the perimeter of a PUD development not fronting on a public street. Such setback shall be designed and landscaped as a buffer strip; parking lots and driveways shall not be permitted in such yard, except that drives may cross such setback.
- J. A setback at least 35 feet wide shall be provided along the right-of-way of a public collector street proposed within any PUD, and a setback 50 feet wide shall be provided along the right-of-way of a public principal or minor arterial street proposed within the PUD. Collector roads and principal and minor arterials roads are shown on the Transportation Map in the Swartz Creek Master Plan.
- K. A landscaped setback at least ten feet wide shall be provided between a parking lot of five or more spaces and a property line within any PUD, and 20 feet from the perimeter property line of the PUD, except when adjacent to a public street right-of-way line, existing or proposed, in which case the preceding setbacks shall apply.
- L. All required setbacks shall be landscaped and adequately and permanently maintained by the property owner, tenant, or organization responsible for maintaining common areas as provided herein.
- M. Any single-family dwelling structure shall be located at least 20 feet from any other single-family dwelling structure unless structurally attached thereto.
- N. The location of buildings and uses, and the distances between buildings shall be clearly shown on the area plan and shall control the development and continued use of the property.
- O. Buildings exceeding a height of two and one-half stories or 35 feet shall be approved as to specific height by the Planning Commission, based upon the following:
 - 1. There not being a negative impact on light, air circulation, views, or airport flight patterns;
 - 2. The proposed building being in scale with the existing or intended character of the district; and
 - 3. A positive recommendation from the city fire chief regarding fire protection and safety.
- P. Each lot or principal building in a PUD shall have vehicular access from a public street or from a private street.
- Q. Each lot or principal building in a PUD shall have pedestrian access from a public or private sidewalk, where deemed necessary by the city council. All parts and phases of the PUD shall be interconnected by a sidewalk system which will provide the necessary, safe and convenient movement of pedestrians. A bicycle path system shall also be provided in the PUD and may be part of the sidewalk system, where approved by the city council. Said system shall be connected to the public sidewalk system.
- R. Public and private streets shall be designed and constructed according to standards established for public streets. If, in the future, private streets in a PUD are to be dedicated to a public agency, the owners shall first fully agree to bear the full expense of construction or any other action required to make streets suitable for public acceptance.

- An individual dwelling unit in any single-family, two-family townhouse, or similar residential structure shall not have direct access to a collector or arterial street.
- T. Electrical, telephone, and cable television lines shall be underground.
- U. Usable open space areas shall be conveniently and equitably located through the PUD in relation to the location of dwelling units and natural features.
- V. Open space areas shall have minimum dimensions which, in the planning commission's opinion, are usable for the functions intended and which will be maintainable.
- W. The city council may require, that natural amenities such as ravines, rock outcrops, wooded areas, tree or shrub specimens, unique wildlife habitats, ponds, streams, and marshes be preserved as part of the open space system of the PUD.
- X. The city council may require dedication for road rights-of-way, schools and/or parks.
- y. Where there is conflict between required setbacks and the Preliminary PUD Site Plan, the setbacks shown on the Preliminary PUD Site Plan will prevail.

Section 7.08. Approval of Preliminary PUD site plan.

Upon approval of the Preliminary PUD site plan by the city council the property shall be rezoned to an appropriate Planned Unit Development District Zoning District, with the underlying zoning district noted on the official zoning. (Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.09. Process for Final PUD site plan(s).

- A. The applicant shall submit 12 copies of a detailed final site plan for the entire approved Preliminary PUD site plan area to the city clerk to initiate the review process.
- B. Upon submission of all required materials and fees required by Article 29, the planning commission shall hold such hearings as may be required by law, and shall approve, deny, or approve with conditions in accordance with the standards and regulations of Article 29, Site Plan Review.
- C. If the final PUD site plan was approved with conditions, the applicant shall submit a revised site plan to the city clerk for approval prior to the issuance of any building permits.

(Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.10. Final PUD site plan submittal procedures and approval.

A Final PUD site plan review for each building or project phase shall be submitted according to the procedures and standards contained within this ordinance. The purpose of the PUD final review is to consider the final site plan for the entire PUD, which is consistent with the approved Preliminary PUD site plan. Receipt of a building permit shall require final approval by the city council.

The final submittal shall include the site plan information required by Article 29, and the following:

- A. Development agreement. A proposed written agreement specifying all the terms and understanding of the PUD development, and the conditions upon which the PUD approval was based including a specific list of any approved deviations from the standards of this ordinance. The final site plan shall not be officially approved until said agreement has been reviewed by the city attorney, signed by representatives of both parties and received by the city clerk. The agreement shall be recorded in the office of Genesee County, Registrar of Deeds at the expense of the applicant.
- B. Hydrological impact assessment. The planning commission may determine that a hydrological impact assessment is needed describing the existing ground and surface water resources including, but not limited to, a description of the water table, direction of groundwater flow, recharge and discharge areas, lake levels, surface drainage, floodplains, and water quality as well as the projected impact of the proposed development on such resources, in particular impacts associated with water supply development, wastewater disposal, and storm water management.

For projects over 100 acres, the applicant may submit a schematic site plan illustrating general building footprints, parking lot areas, road alignments, open space and general landscaping; with more detailed site plans submitted for the first building or project phase. Each detailed site plan shall be reviewed according to the procedures and standards of Article 29, Site Plan Review.

The final PUD site plan shall be reviewed by the planning commission, which shall make recommendations to city council, according to the procedures outlined in Article 29, Site Plan Review.

(Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.11. Condominium projects.

For any condominium section of a PUD, the applicant shall provide a copy of the master deed and condominium association bylaws for approval by the city council. The condominium documents shall provide limits on use of common areas or open space for accessory structures such as swimming pools, decks, playground equipment and buildings.

A plan shall be provided indicating the limits of such accessory structures within a defined envelope.

Prior to approval of the final PUD site plan, the applicant shall submit a written agreement to the city attorney for review and approval by the city council. The agreement shall:

A. Set forth the conditions upon which the approval is based, with reference to the approved final PUD site plan.

- B. When open space or common areas are indicated in the PUD plan for use by the residents, the open space or common areas shall be conveyed in fee or otherwise committed by dedication to an association of the residents, and the use shall be irrevocably dedicated for the useful life of the residences, and retained as open space for park, recreation or other common uses.
- C. Set forth a program and financing for maintaining common areas and features, such as walkways, signs, lighting and landscaping.
- D. Assure that trees and woodlands will be preserved as shown on the site plan, or replaced on a caliper for caliper basis.
- E. Assure the construction and maintenance of all streets and necessary utilities (including public water, wastewater collection and treatment) through bonds or other satisfactory means, for any and all phases of the PUD. In the case of phased PUDs this requirement shall be reviewed at the time of any final site plan approval.
- F. Address any other concerns of the city regarding construction and maintenance.

Section 7.12. Schedule of construction.

Final site plan approval of a PUD, PUD phase or a building within a PUD shall be effective for a period of three years. Further submittals under the PUD procedures shall be accepted for review upon a showing of substantial progress in development of previously approved phases, or upon a showing of good cause for not having made such progress.

In the development of a PUD, the percentage of single-family dwelling units under construction, or lots sold, shall be at least in the same proportion to the percentage of multiple-family dwelling units under construction at any one time, provided that this section shall be applied only if single-family dwelling units comprise 25 percent or more of the total housing stock proposed for the PUD. Non-residential structures designed to serve the PUD residents shall not be built until the PUD has enough dwelling units built to support such non-residential use. The planning commission may modify this requirement in their Preliminary or final submittal review process. Further, this restriction does not apply to a Downtown PUD or the Morrish Road PUD since only non-residential might be constructed in the PUD. (Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.13. Amendments and deviations from approved final PUD site plan. Deviations from the approved final PUD site plan may occur only when an applicant or property owner who was granted final PUD site plan approval notifies the zoning administrator of the proposed amendment to such approved site plan in writing, accompanied by a site plan illustrating the proposed change. The request shall be received prior to initiation of any construction in conflict with the approved final PUD site plan.

- A. Procedure. Within 14 days of receipt of a request to amend the final PUD site plan, the zoning administrator shall determine whether the change is major, warranting review by the planning commission, and city council or minor, allowing administrative approval, as noted below.
- B. Minor changes. The zoning administrator may approve the proposed revision upon finding the change would not alter the basic design nor

any conditions imposed upon the original plan approval by the planning commission. The zoning administrator shall inform the planning commission of such approval in writing. The zoning administrator shall consider the following when determining a change to be minor.

- For residential buildings, the size of structures may be reduced; or increased by five percent, provided the overall density of units does not increase and the minimum square footage requirements are met
- 2. Gross floor area of non-residential buildings may be decreased; or increased by up to five percent or 10,000 square feet, whichever is smaller.
- 3. Floor plans may be changed if consistent with the character of the use.
- 4. Horizontal and/or vertical elevations may be altered by up to five percent.
- 5. Relocation of a building by up to five feet, if consistent with required setbacks and other standards.
- 6. Designated "Areas not to be disturbed" may be increased.
- 7. Plantings approved in the final PUD landscape plan may be replaced by similar types of landscaping on a one-to-one or greater basis. Any trees to be preserved which are lost during construction may be replaced by at least two trees of the same or similar species.
- 8. Improvements or slight relocation of site access or circulation, such as inclusion of deceleration lanes, boulevards, curbing, pedestrian/bicycle paths, etc.
- 9. Changes of building materials to another of higher quality, as determined by the zoning administrator.
- 10. Slight modification of sign placement or reduction of size.
- 11. Internal rearrangement of parking lot which does not affect the number of parking spaces or alter access locations or design.
- 12. Changes required or requested by the city, county or state for safety reasons.
- C. Major changes. Where the zoning administrator determines the requested amendment to the approved final PUD site plan is major, resubmittal to the planning commission and city council shall be required. Should the planning commission determine that the modifications to the final PUD site plan significantly alter the intent of the Preliminary PUD site plan, a revised Preliminary PUD site plan shall be submitted.

(Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.14. Appeals, Variances and Waivers.

- A. No decision related to a PUD, including the approval or denial of a preliminary PUD plan or final PUD site plan or a decision to grant or deny a waiver, may be appealed to the Zoning Board of Appeals, nor are waivers granted subject to variance approval or modification by the Zoning Board of Appeals. Any departure from an approved final PUD site plan shall be permitted only as authorized in Section 7.14 Amendments and Deviations from Approved Preliminary PUD Plan or Approved Final PUD Site Plan.
- B. Waivers. A waiver may be granted as part of an approval according to the provisions of this Article for certain requirements and standards of

the underlying zoning district or proposed special use upon the City Council or Planning Commission's own discretion or written request by the applicant. The requirements or standards shall be applied to the maximum extent possible, but suitable alternatives that substantially achieve the purpose of this Zoning Ordinance may be accepted, if any, if the requirements or standards are deemed impractical or unreasonable. Any final approval of the City Council or Planning Commission that provides for a relaxation of standards required by the underlying zoning district or this Chapter is presumed to have been waived in accordance with this Article.

The Planning Commission can approve waivers under this Article when the following conditions have been met:

- 1. The waiver will result in an improvement to the design or function of a building or site which would not be possible following the standards of the zoning district.
- 2. The need for the waiver cannot be the result of a self-created situation.
- 3. The waiver cannot be sought as a way to circumvent or avoid the requirements of the zoning ordinance.

Section 7.15. Performance guarantees.

- A. Performance bonds, irrevocable bank letters of credit, cash deposits, or other forms of security acceptable as to type and amount to the city council shall be provided by the applicant to the city clerk. Such security shall be for construction of site improvements shown on the approved area plan.
- B. The applicant shall submit a cost estimate of the improvements to be covered by the guarantee, and verified as to amount by the city manager. The city council may release portions of a deposit in relation to work completed and approved upon inspection as complying with an approved plan provided however, that the balance on deposit will be sufficient to complete remaining site improvements. In the event that the applicant shall fail to provide improvements according to an approved plan, the city council shall have the authority to have such work completed, and to reimburse itself for costs of such work by appropriating funds from the deposited security, or may require performance by the bonding company.

(Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 7.16. Violations.

A violation of the PUD plan or agreement shall be considered a violation of this ordinance.

- A. Violations or any deviation from the approved PUD site plan, except as authorized in this ordinance, shall be considered a violation of this article and treated as a misdemeanor. Further, any such deviation shall invalidate the PUD designation.
- B. Violations of any plan approved under this section, or failure to comply with any requirements of this section, including any agreements and conditions attached to any approved plan, shall be considered a violation of this ordinance.

(Ord. No. 440, §§ 1, 10, 6-10-19)

Section 2. Effective date.

This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days following publication.

Discussion Ensued.

YES: Spillane, Gilbert, Krueger, Knickerbocker, Henry Cramer.

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

BROWN ROAD LAND SALE OPTION

DISCUSSION

Mr. Zettel reviewed with the council the land purchase option agreement we received for the 11 acres the city owns in Shiawassee County. He asked the council to think about it and ask any questions about the agreement over the next few weeks. He will put a resolution for it in the next council packet.

A RESOLUTION TO AFFIRM THE PURCHASE OF VACANT LAND ON BRISTOL ROAD

Resolution No. 230612-09

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Cramer Second by Councilmember Knickerbocker

WHERAS, the City of Swartz Creek made a good faith offer on listed real estate, consisting of approximately 15 acres of vacant land on Bristol Road, parcel ID 58-30-300-012; and

WHEREAS, the offer was accepted by the seller, with contingencies for the buyer; and

WHEREAS, a Phase I environmental study was performed with no adverse findings; and

WHEREAS, the city finds there to be numerous public purchase options for this property in the long term, including potential resale, recreation, and planned development; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City affirms the intent to purchase parcel 58-30-300-012 as outlined in the purchase agreement included in the June 12, 2023 city council packet.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the City authorizes and directs the Mayor to execute any and all documents related to and necessary to close the real estate transaction.

YES: Gilbert, Krueger, Knickerbocker, Henry, Cramer, Spillane.

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

A RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A REQUEST FOR FUNDING, DESIGNATE AN AGENT, ATTEST TO THE EXISTENCE OF FUNDS AND COMMIT TO IMPLEMENTING A MAINTENANCE PROGRAM FOR THE WINCHESTER WOODS REHABILITATION PROJECT PARTIALLY FUNDED BY THE TRANSPORTATION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND CATEGORY B PROGRAM.

Resolution No. 230612-10

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Gilbert Second by Councilmember Cramer

WHERAS, the City of Swartz Creek is applying for \$250,000.00 in funding through MDOT from the Transportation Economic Development Category B Program to rehabilitate several local streets in the Winchester Woods Subdivision. Specifically, Chesterfield Drive, Eton Court, Birchcrest Drive, Valleyview Drive, Young Drive, and Oakview Drive; and

WHEREAS, MDOT requires a formal commitment from the public agency that will be receiving these funds and will be implementing and maintaining these infrastructure projects; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the City has authorized Adam Zettel, City Manager, to act as agent on behalf of the City to request Transportation Economic Development Fund Category B Program funding, to act as the applicant's agent during the project development, and to sign a project agreement upon receipt of a funding award.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the City attests to the existence of, and commits to, providing at least \$460,978.00 toward the construction costs of the project(s), and all costs for design, permit fees, administration costs, and cost overruns.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the City commits to owning operating, funding, and implementing a maintenance program over the design life of the facilities constructed with Transportation Economic Development Fund Category B Program funding.

Discussion Ensued.

YES: Krueger, Knickerbocker, Henry, Cramer, Spillane, Gilbert.

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

RESOLUTION TO APPROVE ANNUAL COVERAGE AND PAYMENT FOR GENERAL AND LIABILITY INSURANCE OF THE CITY TO MEADOWBROOK

Resolution No. 230612-11

(Carried)

Motion by Councilmember Knickerbocker Second by Councilmember Cramer

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek has a need to insure property, equipment, and services that it owns and provides; and

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek has been engaged in risk management with the Michigan Municipal League Liability and Property Pool, as serviced by Meadowbrook Insurance Group since 1986; and

WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek finds this professional service to meet or exceed financial expectations, as well as the staffing and service needs of the city.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek appropriate and approve payment for an amount not to exceed \$48,177 to Michigan Municipal League Meadow Brook Insurance, payment of the City's annual 2023-2024 premiums for property and liability insurance, funds to be apportioned to reflect departmental coverage as noted in the invoice.

YES: Krueger, Knickerbocker, Henry, Cramer, Spillane, Gilbert.

NO: None. Motion Declared Carried.

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

None.

REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

Councilmember Spillane wanted to know if we had any reports on HTD'S. Mr. Zettel responded that it appears that the curfew and early shutdown were successful. Councilmember Spillane commented that the Historical Society's yard sale was very successful.

Councilmember Henry congratulated his family members that graduated.

Councilmember Cramer reported HTD'S had a few instances, and he thinks people felt safer due to the police presence. He also wanted to thank all wo participated in the Veterans Memorial Day Ceremony.

Councilmember Knickerbocker was happy that HTD's went good even with the early shutdown.

Councilmember Spillane noted that the railroad crossing on Miller Road is getting bad.

Mayor Krueger is hoping since we had enhanced police protection at HTD's this will prevent future festivals and events of having issues.

ADJOURNMENT

Resolution No. 230612-12	(Carried)
Motion by Councilmember Gilbert Second by Councilmember Crame	
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council ad	ljourn the regular meeting at 8:32 p.m.
Unanimous Voice Vote.	
David A. Krueger. Mavor	Connie Olger, City Clerk